
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL
Chief Executive

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 21 November 2018

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber - Moorlands House, Leek

13 November 2018

PART 1
1. Apologies. 

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any. 

3. To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6)

4. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman). 

5. Declaration of Interests:- 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
 Other Interests

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any. 
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 

accordance with Procedure Rule 15).

7. Growth Strategy - Consultation Responses. (7.10pm) (Pages 7 - 40)

8. Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 3 - Transfer of Services - Street 
Cleansing & Grounds Maintenance. (7.30pm) (Pages 41 - 46)

9. Work Programme. (7.50pm) (Pages 47 - 48)
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:

 Chair’s Items
 Members’ Items

10. Exclusion of the Press and Public. 
The Chair to move:-

Public Document Pack



 “That pursuant to Section 100A (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach 
of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 100I (1) 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
paragraphs indicated.”

11. Leisure Centres - Contract Arrangements (8pm) (Pages 49 - 80)

12. Leek Rail Project Update. (8.20pm) (Pages 81 - 154)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor N Podmore (Chair) Councillor A Hart (Vice-Chair)
Councillor C J S Atkins Councillor J Bull
Councillor J Davies Councillor S Ellis
Councillor B Emery Councillor K Flunder
Councillor I Herdman Councillor G Lockett
Councillor I J Lucas Councillor T McNicol
Councillor D Price Councillor J Redfern
Councillor P Roberts Councillor H Sheldon MBE
Councillor R Ward Councillor P Wood
Councillor C Wood



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PANEL MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER 2018
PRESENT: Councillor N Podmore (Chair) 

Councillors S Ellis, B Emery, K Flunder, A Hart, I Herdman, 
G Lockett, I J Lucas, D Price, P Roberts, H Sheldon MBE, R Ward 
and C Wood

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors:- A Forrester – Portfolio Holder for Enviroment
D Ogden – Cabinet Support Member
B Johnson

APOLOGIES: Councillors C J S Atkins, J Bull, T McNicol and J Redfern

19 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS.

There were no substitute members.

20 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

DECIDED – That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Panel held on 18 July 2018 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

21 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS.

There were none.

22 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:

No declarations of interest were made. 

23 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS.

There were none.

24 UPDATE ON THE COUNTRYSIDE AND PARKS MANAGEMENT REVIEW 
(PRESENTATION) - NICOLA KEMP - OPERATIONS MANAGER 
(CONTRACT MANAGEMENT).

Nicola Kemp, Operations Manager (Contract Management), gave a presentation to 
the Panel which provided an update on the management transfer of the Council’s 
Countryside Sites. The slides included:-

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 26 September 2018

 Background
 Heads of Terms
 Responsibilities remaining with the SMDC
 Progress so Far

Councillor Chris Wood felt that the 30 year lease with the Staffordshire Wildlife Trust 
(SWT) was too long a time period and thought that the District Council should be 
involved with any discussions with the SWT, rather than direct contact between 
Biddulph Town Council and Friends of Biddulph Grange Country Park. It was 
explained that a 30 year lease was standard practice and that there would be break 
clauses and reviews of the contract at year 1 and year 5. Biddulph Town Council and 
the Friends of Biddulph Grange Country Park (who had expressed an interest in 
operating the visitor centre at Biddulph Grange Country Park) had agreed to liaise 
directly with SWT regarding any arrangements for the centre due to the transfer 
timeframes.

Councillor Lockett was given assurance that Ladderedge Country Park would 
continue to be managed and maintained as it had been previously done so by 
members of Council staff.
 
Issues around communication and Marshes Hill Common were highlighted by 
Councillor Flunder. Nicola Kemp explained that it was a site of special  scientific 
interest and she had tried to contact the Parish Council regarding this matter. The 
Council was willing to work with Brown Edge Parish Council and include this site in 
the proposals with SWT. 

Queries were also raised around freehold rights at Wetley Moor and if a financial 
contribution from Stoke City Council had been agreed. There were no plans to stop 
sales of land at present and a financial agreement with Stoke City Council had not 
yet been confirmed.

Finally, the Panel discussed the wording and phrases within legal documentation 
relating to the contract with SWT.

DECIDED: That the presentation be noted. 

25 PROGRESS REPORT ON THE COUNCILS STRATEGY FOR PHYSICAL 
ACTIVITY AND SPORT.

The Panel considered an update report and presentation on the progress on the first 
year delivery of Council’s Strategy for Physical Activity and Sport. David Stock - 
Principal Officer, Leisure and Recreation, introduced the presentation which covered 
the following topics:- 

 Background Assessments
 Target Groups
 Young People
 Place Base Approach – Haregate
 Maximising the Outdoors
 Support for Voluntary Clubs
 Ongoing Developments

Page 4



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 26 September 2018

Councillor Wood was of the opinion that although some work had been carried out in 
Biddulph East, the majority of projects were in Leek and Cheadle. Councillor Roberts 
raised the point that Biddulph didn’t have a Sports Council and there had been little 
attendance from representatives in Biddulph in the past. 

Discussion took place around adult gym equipment in parks and the potential 
benefits of such equipment. This would be looked into and a local need would have 
to be identified for this suggestion to go ahead. Councillor Emery advised the Panel 
that ‘Action West End’ was currently carrying out consultation in relation to adult gym 
equipment at the Westwood Recreational area in Leek. 

Members were pleased that the skate park at Brough Park was going to be updated 
but raised various concerns about the Leisure Centre at this site. In particular, 
members were concerned about the cleanliness of the café, floors and changing 
areas. A suggestion was made that the membership tariffs should be reviewed, as 
currently only a flat tariff was available which didn’t suit all circumstances. The Panel 
felt that all of the leisure centres in the Moorlands were no longer fit for purpose and 
were all in need of investment and ambitious plans. It was suggested that David 
Stock was invited to a meeting of Leek Town Council. 

David Stock confirmed that he would look into the complaints received at Brough 
Park Leisure Centre and would contact the Contracts Manager in relation to the 
operational issues identified by the Panel. 

Safety concerns were raised in relation to The Paddock play area in Biddulph as the 
area was regularly vandalised.  The Edgerton Centre in Blythe Bridge was also 
mentioned as there were issues here too which required attention. The Open 
Spaces Audit identified the areas most in need of improvement and this would be 
looked into after the meeting.

Councillors praised various sports projects such as the play area at Halls Road, and 
the Bowling Club in Biddulph, the new play equipment and pitch at Upper Tean and 
the improvements to recreation grounds in Cheadle. 

DECIDED: That the report and presentation be noted.

26 WORK PROGRAMME.

The Panel considered its Work Programme and agreed the items listed, subject to, 
the following items being added:-

 Alliance Environmental Services (Phase 3)
 Leisure Contract

DECIDED: That the Panel’s Work Programme for 2018/19 be agreed, subject to the 
above additions to the programme.

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm

Page 5



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 26 September 2018

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 6



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel

21 November 2018

TITLE: Growth Strategy - Consultation Responses

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs

CONTACT OFFICER: Sarah Porru 

WARDS INVOLVED: All Wards

Appendices Attached –  Appendix 1 - Growth Strategy
   Appendix 2 – Consultation responses

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Cabinet on the response to 
consultation regarding the Draft Growth Strategy for Staffordshire Moorlands, 
developed jointly in partnership between SMDC and SCC.

2. Recommendation

2.1 To note the response to the draft growth strategy consultation. 

2.2 To adopt the Growth Strategy for Staffordshire Moorlands as the Council’s 
policy for regeneration. 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The emerging local plan was submitted to the inspector in June 2018. The 
examination took place in October 2018. Depending on the outcome of the 
examination, adoption is likely to happen in spring 2019.

3.2 In order for the Local Plan objectives to be achieved a delivery plan is required 
which will support appropriate development to come forward in identified 
locations and maximise community benefits from such development. The 
Growth Strategy provides the strategic vision and context to the development 
and proposes key actions to achieve the vision. While the Local Plan identifies 
where the development should be, the Growth Strategy identifies how it could 
be delivered and what benefits it could achieve.  A Draft Growth Strategy was 
presented to the Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
approved for consultation by the Cabinet in May 2018.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



3.3 A four week consultation exercise was held in August 2018. The document 
was published on the Council’s website and email notifications were sent out 
to all relevant stakeholders, district and county councillors and parish councils. 
Press releases were issued to notify the residents of the consultation period. 

3.4 Responses received from eight organisations/Individuals including 
Staffordshire Chamber of Commerce, Biddulph Town Council, Leek Auctions, 
Churnet Valley Living Landscape Partnership as well as a number of 
individuals.

3.5 In total there were 34 separate comments or suggested alternations as well as 
a number of endorsements and welcome for the proposals. A summary of key 
points and actions taken are attached at appendix 2:

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The report links Corporate Plan 2015-19; Aim 3: To help create a strong 
economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and villages; in that it will 
address delivery of priorities

 Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
 flourishing town centres that support the local economy
 encourage and develop tourism
 support open for business approach

  

5. Alternative Options

5.1 Option 1: Do not agree approval for adoption
Under this option, the Council will not adopt the Growth Strategy as a material 
planning document. This would mean that there is no agreed delivery strategy 
to support key developments identified in the Local Plan. Not having a delivery 
mechanism in the form of the Growth Strategy in place will result in fewer 
opportunities to attract inward investment in the district and could risk the 
Council losing out on wider community benefits. Not recommended

5.2 Option 2: Agree adoption of the Growth Strategy. Having an implementation 
plan in place will help demonstrate the Council’s commitment to delivering the 
Local Plan. This will support appropriate development to come forward in 
identified locations and maximise community benefits from such development. 
It will also provide context to prospective investors and funders and attract 
inward investment in the District. It will also help the public and private sector 
partners in preparing and assessing business cases for funding bids and 
investment propositions. Recommended

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

Page 8



6.2 Workforce
SMDC Regeneration team in partnership with Staffordshire County 
Council

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies and an Equality Impact Needs 
Assessment is not required at this time.

6.4 Financial Considerations
The Growth Strategy sets out an agreed approach to future 
development in the district and will act as a tool to lever in external 
funding as well as setting the framework for commitment of SMDC 
and SCC future resources.

6.5 Legal
None at this stage.

6.6 Sustainability
The Growth Strategy has been developed in line with emerging 
Local Plan proposals, adopted core strategy and Supplementary 
Planning documents relating to sustainability.

6.7 Consultation
The strategy has been developed as a joint SMDC/SCC growth 
strategy and as such has been subject to internal consultation 
within both organisations. The strategy sets out an approach to 
delivery of the Local Plan and the vision agreed by the Leaders of 
both authorities. The Growth Strategy has been subject to 
extensive consultation with relevant stakeholders and residents 
prior to adoption.

6.8 Risk Assessment
Separate risk assessments are produced as part of the delivery of 
each project in accordance with the Council’s risk assessment 
procedures

Dai Larner 
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Staffordshire 
Moorlands Growth 
Strategy

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/
media/3203/Staffordshire-
Moorlands-Draft-Growth-
Strategy/pdf/Growth_Strategy_for_S
taffordshire_Moorlands-
_May_2018.pdf

Sarah Porru

sarah.porru@highpeak.
gov.uk

6.4

Page 9

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/3203/Staffordshire-Moorlands-Draft-Growth-Strategy/pdf/Growth_Strategy_for_Staffordshire_Moorlands-_May_2018.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/3203/Staffordshire-Moorlands-Draft-Growth-Strategy/pdf/Growth_Strategy_for_Staffordshire_Moorlands-_May_2018.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/3203/Staffordshire-Moorlands-Draft-Growth-Strategy/pdf/Growth_Strategy_for_Staffordshire_Moorlands-_May_2018.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/3203/Staffordshire-Moorlands-Draft-Growth-Strategy/pdf/Growth_Strategy_for_Staffordshire_Moorlands-_May_2018.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/3203/Staffordshire-Moorlands-Draft-Growth-Strategy/pdf/Growth_Strategy_for_Staffordshire_Moorlands-_May_2018.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/3203/Staffordshire-Moorlands-Draft-Growth-Strategy/pdf/Growth_Strategy_for_Staffordshire_Moorlands-_May_2018.pdf
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/media/3203/Staffordshire-Moorlands-Draft-Growth-Strategy/pdf/Growth_Strategy_for_Staffordshire_Moorlands-_May_2018.pdf


7. Detail

7.1 The Growth Strategy is a joint initiative between Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council and Staffordshire County Council. It demonstrates commitment 
from both partner organisations to delivering sustainable growth in the District.  
It has been informed by the Councils’ Corporate Plan priorities, existing 
evidence base reports, current initiatives being carried out by the Councils and 
their partners as well as overarching strategies for the wider Stoke & 
Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership area. 

7.2 The key purpose of the strategy is to provide a wider growth context to 
prospective investors and funders and attract inward investment in the District. 
The Strategy will also help the public and private sector partners in preparing 
and assessing business cases for funding bids and investment propositions.

7.3 The Growth Strategy proposes to focus on key areas of intervention:

 Housing delivery

 Business & Employment growth and skills

 Visitor economy and town centres

 Health & well-being

 Connectivity

7.4 The key delivery principles for the Strategy are:

 Adopting a plan led approach which identifies and delivers priorities in 
line with the Local Plan

 Delivery through the creation of  strong partnerships including the Local 
Economic Partnership(LEP), Chamber of Commerce and others

 Willingness to use the prospect of growth to support investment and 
focusing on what is feasible and achievable.

 Proactive intervention in growth and development activities including 
taking  control when required to acquire land and funding

 Working with our neighbouring urban areas to create a complementary 
offer

Page 10



DRAFT 

Growth Strategy for Staffordshire Moorlands 
December 2018 

P
age 11



Spatial Context: 
 
 

1 

P
age 12



    Page 
Introduction        3 
 
Local context             5               

        
National and regional context      7 
  
Challenges  and  strengths      9 
 
Our focus      10 
 
Key priority sectors 
• Housing delivery      11 
• Business, employment growth and skills    13   
• Visitor economy and town centres    15 
• Health and well-being     17 
• Connectivity      19 

 
Delivery mechanism      21 

 

Contents: 

02 
2 

P
age 13



Foreword:  
 
The Growth Strategy for Staffordshire Moorlands 
is a joint initiative between Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council and Staffordshire 
County Council. 
 
The Strategy sets out a plan for sustainable 
growth and identifies development opportunities 
in the District for the next 13 years. It 
demonstrates the partners’ commitment to 
regeneration as well as to the delivery of the 
Local Plan.  
 
It has been informed by Councils’ corporate plan 
priorities, existing evidence base reports and 
current initiatives being carried out by both 
Councils and their partners. 
 
We believe it will not only guide future 
developments, but also help attract inward 
investment and funding from private and public 
sector sources. 
 
The Strategy is an ambitious step forward for the 
District to position itself in the wider North 
Staffordshire context.  
 
Cllr Philip Atkin, Leader, Staffordshire County 
Council 
Cllr Sybil Ralphs, Leader, Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council 
 

Vision 
 
Staffordshire Moorlands aims to be an area 
with a vibrant and distinctive natural and 
built environment which welcomes 
planned growth to create an independent 
and sustainable economy and offer a high 
quality of life to the residents, visitors and 
the business community in North 
Staffordshire. 
 

3 

P
age 14



The key objectives for the Growth Strategy are: 
 

• To achieve delivery of housing targets as set out in the Local Plan which 
will provide ‘good growth’ that supports community vitality and enhances 
towns and villages as places where residents want to live and work.   

• To deliver a business growth approach that supports entrepreneurship, 
innovation and investment across  a diverse economic base to provide a 
wide range of jobs and opportunities for present and future residents.  

• To facilitate leisure development, enhance leisure infrastructure and carry 
out place marketing activities to support the visitor economy and increase 
visitor spend. 

• To support a high performing, relevant and responsive education and skills 
system that narrows the skills  gap and anticipates  future challenges and 
opportunities to ensure a productive workforce for tomorrow. 

• To be a place where improved health and wellbeing is experienced by all . 

Purpose 
 
• To create a shared vision among partners 

• To demonstrate our commitment to 
growth and delivery of the Local Plan 

• To set out clear priorities and our 
approach to their delivery. 
 

 
 

Aim 
 
To support planned growth in housing, jobs, 

entrepreneurial activities and the visitor 
economy through the  provision of 
appropriate infrastructure for health, 
education and transport in order to deliver 
our vision for the area. 

 

The key principles for the Growth Strategy are: 
 
• Adopting a plan led approach with a focus on delivering the Local Plan 

• Delivery through the creation of  strong partnerships including the Local 
Economic Partnership(LEP), Chamber of Commerce and others 

• Willingness to use the prospect of growth to support investment and 
focusing on what is feasible  and achievable. 

• Proactive intervention in growth and development activities including 

taking  control when required to acquire land and funding 
• Working with our neighbouring urban areas to create a complementary 

offer 

4 

P
age 15



 

Corporate Plans: The Councils’ corporate plans support Economic 

Development and Regeneration to achieve increased economic growth and 
sustainable  towns and rural communities. 
 

Planning Policy: Staffordshire Moorlands District Council adopted a Core 

Strategy in 2014 which established the principle of growth in Leek, Cheadle and 
Biddulph and in the more sustainable villages of the Rural Areas. A new Local 
Plan is now in the latter stages of preparation which carries this principle 
forward whilst identifying sites for development and protection. The plan seeks 
to support the growth of 320 homes per year and a total of 27 hectares of 
additional employment land up to the year 2031 to support economic growth. 
  

Built Heritage: The District Council is committed to planning positively for 

high quality and inclusive design for all development and has adopted a Design 
Guide as a Supplementary Planning Document to the Local plan.   A  high 
quality, well designed, development can enhance the sense of place and 
identity of an area and can bring significant benefits to the local environment 
and economy.  
 

Natural environment: Staffordshire Moorlands lies in the foothills of the 

Pennines and around a third of the District lies within the Peak District National 
Park. Of the remainder, around 30% is Green Belt, extensive areas of the 
District are protected for their environmental value such as the Churnet Valley 
which is an area recognised of significant landscape, wildlife and heritage value 
and there are also many other valued landscapes and natural settings within 
the district.  

Local Context: 

Peak District  National Park 

Leek town centre 

5 

P
age 16



Economic Profile 
 
• Economic activity rate in the District (84.2%) is higher than the national average 

(77.8%).  
• Weekly pay for full time jobs available in the District in 2018 is low (£478.70) 

compared to the national average  (£571.10) and those that live in the area but may 
work elsewhere (£537.10). 

 
Employment:  
 Average wages of full time workers are £3,000 below the national average pa. 
 Net outflow of 12,800 workers  from District. 
 Claimant unemployment is very low at 0.6%  
 Youth unemployment has fallen sharply since 2012 to >1.2% 
 
Skills:  
 At level 2(GCSE) and 3(A level), the district performs at par with the regional 

average. 
 10% fewer residents hold a degree or equivalent higher level qualification than the 

national average. 
 390 workplaces offer apprenticeships in the District. 
 59% of the apprenticeships are at Level 2. 
 Number of Level 3 apprenticeships have risen since 2013/14 by 13% 
 
Enterprise: 
 Lowest business start up rate in Staffordshire at 10.5% 
 4120 enterprises based  in the District in 2016 (ONS); 75 workplaces employ more 

than 50 people on site 
 In 2016, self-employment rate has fallen to 10.1% but remains above Staffordshire 

average (9.5%)  
 Ranked highest in Staffordshire for proportion of employees working in knowledge 

based economy 
 Business survival rate is strong with 93% businesses established in 2014 still trading 

Key employment sectors: (ONS 2015) 

 
Manufacturing, mining and associated logistics - 25% 
of workforce 
Growth Potential – Supply chain growth linked to JCB, 
Rapiscan, Keyplant engineering, Klarius, Altrad Belle, 
Greenhouse  People, F Ball & Co and others. 
Key constraints – Availability of sites and  skills 
  
Agri-Supply Chain- 2,339 jobs  
Growth potential- Economic Impact Assessment 
(2017) identifies £541m pa GVA; Linked to Ornua, 
Croda, Cottage Delight, IAE. LM Bateman, Armatrac 
and Leek Auctions as one of Midlands principle 
agriculture markets. 
Key constraints –business support for diversification, 
identifying new markets, incubation space, digital 
connectivity  
  
Professional services and real estate (construction, 
finance, scientific and technical) - 24% of workforce 
Growth potential – Linked to Capita, creative and 
digital services, University 
Key constraint – Availability of higher grade  office 
accommodation with high speed digital connectivity 
  
Leisure & Tourism (Accommodation, food, retail, arts 
and entertainment)- 17% of workforce 
Growth potential- Link to Peak Park, Biddulph Grange, 
Alton Towers Resort, Churnet Valley, Lodges and 
outdoor recreation 
Key constraints- Connectivity, packaging and 
marketing of offer and low wages. 
 
Education, Health and Public services-23% of 
workforce 
Growth potential- Link to NHS, University, Council  
Key constraints- Public sector funding, recruitment 

Local Context: 

6 

P
age 17



National and Regional Context: 
 
 
 
 

Constellation Partnership: 
 
 
 

The Government is driving housing delivery, 
utilising changes to the planning system, and 
reducing barriers to development. This is 
reflected in the recently adopted National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Stoke & Staffordshire Local Economic 
Partnership (LEP): 
The LEP brings businesses and local authorities 
together to deliver clear targets set out in the 
Strategic Economic Plan to use resources 
supplied by government  to drive economic 
growth, create jobs and raise skills levels.   
 
Constellation Partnership Growth Strategy:  
As part of the Constellation Partnership 
(Northern Gateway Development Zone) and 
the development of the Crewe Hub, a Growth 
Strategy is being prepared to provide new jobs 
and homes in Cheshire, Stoke and 
Staffordshire. Blythe Vale is identified as a 
priority along with Crewe and Stoke for 
improved road and rail links. 
  
Midlands Connect:  
The Midlands Connect strategy identifies rail 
and road connectivity between the Stoke and 
Staffordshire hub (Crewe) and the 
Derby/Nottingham hub (Toton) as a key 
strategic priority. It acknowledges their 
potential to act as catalysts for business and 
professional services in both economic hubs. 
Better connectivity to these hubs could also 
provide better access to the HS2 stations at 
Crewe and Toton, raising their potential to 
unlock the growth of higher-value sectors in 
North Staffordshire.  
 

National Context: 

7 

P
age 18



South 

Cheshire 

growth region Leek 

Growth 
Context: 
 

A50 Corridor connects: 
 

• M6 and M1 
• Stoke-on-Trent and Derby 
• HS2 Eastern arm and HS2 

Western arm 
• High-tech and hi-skilled 

businesses such as Bentley, 
JCB, Toyota, Rolls-Royce and 
Bombardier 

 

8 

P
age 19



Challenges : 
 
• Delivery of Local Plan housing and employment sites 
• Delivery of affordable and special needs homes 
• Rural environment and accessibility to external infrastructure 
• Low growth area and low level of economic dynamism 
• Retention of  skilled young people/graduates 
• Lower level skills at NVQ4+ and above 
• Low level of development and inward investment 
• Few large employers & lack of career progression 
• Vacant and under-used heritage assets 
• Low level of start-ups and growth of small businesses 
• Ageing population and social exclusion 
• Low wages limit re-spend potential 

Strengths: 

• Vibrant town centres & distinctive built heritage 
• Outstanding natural environment 
• Good partnership working with SCC and LEP 
• Successful growing businesses- JCB, Klarius, Rapiscan, Greenhouse  People  
• Available skilled technical workforce for engineering, professional services 

and creative industries 
• Low land values, reduced cost of development 
• Use of great outdoors to promote health and wellbeing offer 
• High quality of life – attractive to aspirational residents 
• Local Plan  submission draft approved- clarity and certainty of 

development 

9 

P
age 20



Leek 
 

• Self-contained market town 
• Attractive town centre with high 

percentage of independent shops 
attracting visitor spend & new hotels 

• Hub for arts & creative industries 
• Strong & successful local industry – 

including engineering & 
manufacturing, food production and 
financial sector 

Cheadle 
 

• Need to increase housing in the town 
centre – bring more local spend, 
investment in health & recreation 

• Daisy Bank redevelopment for new 
office accommodation & business 
growth 

• Continued focus for engineering 
growth – JCB, Klarius 

• St Giles church & new markets 

Blythe Bridge & Churnet Valley 
 
• Deliver  Blythe Park housing and 

industrial estate expansion 
• Improve rail and road access to key 

destinations 
• Churnet Valley Masterplan – 

supporting tourism to increase visitor 
stays & economic impact 

• Support development of Churnet 
Valley railway 

• Promote the use of green 
infrastructure, paths and trails 

Biddulph 
 
• Attractive residential town with good 

range of local amenities 
• Neighbourhood plan &  Development 

orders under development  
• Strong interest in investment from 

growing engineering & manufacturing 
firms   

• New housing, employment & retail 
uses planned 

• Biddulph Grange- key destination 
 

Our focus: 

Leek 

Churnet Valley 

Biddulph 

Cheadle 

10 

P
age 21



Housing Delivery: 
 Issues: 

• Low rate of house-building due to: 
• small sites not attractive to regional developers and investors  
• viability issues  due to low values 
• poor connectivity adding to high construction costs 
• low level of profit margins- not enough incentives for developers 

• Over 189 homes with full permissions unimplemented on larger sites 
• Further  900  homes with  outline planning approvals 
• Lack of control and certainty for Council due to lack of publically owned land that can 

be developed for housing  
• Aging population 

• Need for suitable accommodation 
• Rural residents unable to access services if  unable to drive/lack public 

transport   
• Lack of diversity in available house types- not attracting premium earners/high 

skilled and young first time buyers 
• Potential threat to decline in workforce without sufficient and right quality housing 
 

Opportunities: 
• Draft Local Plan approved by the Council- providing clarity and certainty 
• Government’s focus on housing growth and availability of funding 
• Strong track record of delivering 275 homes through ASCENT 
• Keen interest from Registered Providers and specialist housing product developers  
• Constellation Partnership Growth Strategy in place, provides context and positioning 
• Stoke’s economy is improving with  direct positive impact on housing market 
• A50 is a key growth corridor for skilled labour force creating a strong housing market 

along it 
• A50 corridor is recognised as an investment priority in Midlands Connect growth 

strategy 
• Recent rise in development activities- 

• St Modwens approved planning application on Blythe Vale phase 1 
• McCarthy & Stone on site with schemes for refurbished mill in Leek 
• Waitrose site sold very quickly, more interest from food retailers in all 

towns- proving spend capacity 

Local Plan Context: 2018-2031 

 
6080 homes to be completed (2012-2031) at an 
annual average of 320 per year on allocated sites in 
Leek (30%), Biddulph (20%), Cheadle (25%) and 
rural areas (25%). 
 
The Housing supply data suggests that: 
• Homes completed during 2015/16 = 100 
• Homes under construction = 266 
• Homes with full/outline consent not yet under 

construction = 1034 
 
In the towns, residential development of 15 homes 
or more to provide a target of 33% affordable 
housing on site. 
  
Housing market: (Rightmove) 
 
The majority of sales in Staffordshire Moorlands 
during the last year were semi-detached properties, 
selling for an average price of £152,842. Detached 
properties sold for an average of £274,828, with 
terraced properties fetching £120,205.  
 
Staffordshire Moorlands, with an overall average 
price of £184,627 was more expensive than nearby 
Stoke-On-Trent (£133,520) & Newcastle under Lyme 
(£157,441). 
 
Overall sold prices in Staffordshire Moorlands over 
the last year were 6% up on the previous year and 
8% up on the 2015 level of £171,721. 
 

11 

P
age 22



Housing Delivery: 
 

Proposed Actions: 
 
• Prepare Masterplans and delivery options for 

larger housing clusters such as Biddulph Wharf 
Rd, Cheadle Town Centre, Leek and the Blythe 
Vale sites. 
 

• Commission consultants to prepare an 
investment and acquisitions strategy for the 
masterplanned areas. 
 

• Consider  all options to support housing delivery. 
  
• Review all council owned/ public sector owned 

assets and consider development opportunities 
where appropriate. 
 

• Work with Homes England to promote the ‘Home 
Building Fund’ aimed at small sites and small 
scale builders to bring forward the delivery of 
sites. 
 

• Revise planning pages to include guidance for 
small site owners and businesses- demystifying 
the planning application process. 
 

• Prepare Developer Contribution Supplementary 
Planning Guidance to give additional guidance to 
developers. 
 

• Closer Partnership working to improve  timescale 
for s106 agreements to reduce planning delays. 
 

• Consider refurbishment of mill buildings as part 
of the wider strategy to deliver apartments, 
student accommodation and serviced 
accommodation to add to diversity. 

Extra care housing in Leek 

12 

P
age 23



Business, 
Employment Growth 
and Skills 
 

Issues: 
• Lower than average business start-up rates. 
• Perception of rural areas being unsuitable and unwelcoming for business growth.  
• Lack of fit-for-purpose accommodation and freehold sites.  
• Viability issues due to high remediation/infrastructure costs and low values that restrict 

delivery of allocated and available sites 
• Local demand is for light industrial units that create lower density of jobs. Funding favours 

high job density to meet ‘value for money’ criteria. 
• Funding for growth is restricted to SMEs who have no/little direct customer sales 
• Lack of national/international business or key cluster which restricts ability to attract co-

locaters /supply chain and access to sector growth funding.  
• Council does not own land for development. 
• Poor connectivity and road infrastructure restricts growth potential. 
• Distance to skill providers/lack of transport (or cost of transport) acts as a barrier to skills 

acquisition & apprenticeships for low income households   
• High use of temporary agency staff in manufacturing & engineering & nursing/care sectors 

means lack of access to advanced training/skill development 
• Low wages & terms and conditions acts as a disincentive to skills acquisition in a number of 

sectors which effect availability of skilled labour for sector growth  
• Lack of strategic interaction between schools career teams/labour market information/ 

businesses 

Opportunities: 
• Emerging Local Plan identifies approximately 27ha of additional employment land. 
• Track record of delivering serviced plots in Victoria Business Park in Biddulph which is fully 

occupied. 
• A50 Corridor allows for labour movement for advanced manufacturing businesses such as 

Bentley, JCB, Toyota and Bombardier.  
• Cushman Wakefield report (November 2017) has identified demand for commercial use and 

a need for public sector intervention. 
• Established relationship between the Growth Hub, Chamber and partners for business 

support. 
• District has higher rates of Level 3 qualified working age residents than Stoke-on-Trent, and 

better than average school leaver attainment.  
• Council owns and manages a portfolio of commercial units with a high occupancy rate and 

good rate of return on investment. 
• Employment growth is a key political priority and is supported by the District Deal 

commitment from SCC. 
• Funding available for small businesses from LEP, Peak LEADER and other sources for 

proactive businesses. 

Local Plan Context 2018:2031 

 
The employment land requirement study 
(2017) recommended 27ha additional 
employment land to support the growth of 
320 homes per year.  
 
This is identified in various locations, mainly 
in Leek, Biddulph, Cheadle and rural 
locations. 
 
Key allocations: 
- 5ha at land off Tunstall Road , Biddulph 
- 1ha at Wharf Road, Biddulph 
- 4.27 ha at land off new Haden Road, 

Cheadle 
- 4ha at Leekbrook (expansion of existing 

industrial estate) 
- 18ha at Blythe Vale, off A50 

 
 

14 

P
age 24



Business, Employment Growth and Skills 
 

Proposed Actions: 
 
• Prepare deliverable masterplans for key sites such 

as Biddulph Tunstall Road and Blythe Vale. 
 

• Commission an investment and acquisitions 
strategy for the masterplanned areas as well as 
other employment locations. 
 

• Support town centre regeneration through viable 
re-use of surplus public estate and heritage assets. 
 

• Promote development of managed workspaces to 
support business start-ups, entrepreneurs and 
SMEs in Leek, Biddulph and Cheadle town centre. 
 

• Use of Council resources (Council assets , funding 
and staff expertise) to increase deliverability and 
act as match funding to lever private and public 
sector investment. 
 

• Use the power of strategic acquisition of land 
where relevant to ensure sustained income and 
future growth.  
 

• Develop investment prospectus & investor 
relationships including with developers and local 
landowners for development sites. 
 

• Co-ordination of district wide data on Gatsby 
Careers Benchmarks as audit for schools  to 
understand strategic issues and, with partners, 
develop action plan to address gaps. 

  
• Continue to engage with the businesses to identify 

their skill needs and work with the University as 
well as HE and FE providers to meet the need. 

JCB factory in Cheadle 

14 

P
age 25



Visitor Economy & 
Town Centres 

Issues: 
• Under utilised and under-recognised visitor opportunities and attractions 
• Low visibility/awareness of visitor infrastructure in form of paths/longer trails  
• Poor physical links between trails & green infrastructure (Peak Park, Churnet 

Valley area) to key destinations and town centres  and Stoke urban area. 
• Need for a greater clarity and promotion of offer (why come and what to do & 

even where district is in relation to neighbouring cities). 
• Ratio of staying/day visitors is low (but improving) in part due to lack of visitor 

accommodation compared to Derbyshire. 
 
 

Opportunities: 
• Outstanding built and natural environment 
• Key tourism destinations with national profiles such as Alton Towers,  Peak 

District National Park, Biddulph Grange (National Trust).  
• Historic villages and  town centres with tourism appeal 
• Moneystone Park and  Alton towers accommodation expansions 
• Churnet Valley heritage railway expansion to Leek (planning application 

approved) and reinstatement of line to Oakamoor  to connect to Moneystone 
development. 

• Emerging Local Plan and adopted Green Infrastructure Strategy- supportive of 
visitor economy development  

• Opportunity to create a close physical relationship of the District with the Peak 
District National Park through enhancement of Green Infrastructure. 

• Opportunity to enhance the distinctive built and cultural heritage in town 
centres and create a unique offer to suit contemporary uses. 

• Opportunity to work with stakeholders to implement any adopted 
neighbourhood plan provisions or  adopted development orders. 

Local Plan Context 2018:2031 

 
New Local Plan policies support appropriate tourism 
development and recognises cultural tourism and 
they support a greater range of new 
accommodation, attractions and facilities for tourists 
and visitors.  
 
The visitor economy is an integral part of the: 
• Churnet Valley Masterplan 
• Cheadle Town Centre Masterplan 
• Biddulph Town Centre Area Action Plan 
• Leek Town Centre Masterplan 
 
Visitor economy sector: 
• Generates over 6.3m visitor days (4.7m day 

visitors)  
• Creates £277m economic impact across 

Staffordshire Moorlands as a whole  – (6% growth 
since 2016 

• Creates £32.6m economic impact from visitors to 
Leek – increased by £4.25 since 2014 (9% growth) 

• Staying visitors have  more than double the value 
of day-visitors per day.  

• Generated 83,970 more visitors in Leek since 
2013 (STEAM data) – 9% growth 

 
Town Centre Retail vacancy rates: 
UK (towns) average- 9.9% 
West Midlands- 10.2% 
Leek- 10.8% 
Biddulph- 17.0% 
Cheadle- 19%  15 

P
age 26



Visitor Economy and Town Centres 
 

Proposed Actions: 
 
• Attract more staying visitors by improving the 

quality and range of accommodation stock across 
the district by working with key operators and 
small businesses 
 

• Working with private sector partners, ensure the 
delivery of planned and approved 350 bed spaces 
(Travelodge in Leek, Alton Towers expansion) 
and Moneystone (250 lodges) 
 

• Use of green infrastructure to improve 
connectivity from urban areas and extend trails 
to town/village centres by working with SCC, the 
National Park  Authority and voluntary groups 
ensuring clear linkages to shops, restaurants & 
pubs and Churnet valley railway to generate 
visitor spend. 
 

• Undertake an economic impact assessment by 
visitor activities and have a clear focused strategy 
on increasing numbers of high spending 
groups/individuals  
 

• Enhanced place marketing linked to key 
audiences by working with Destination 
Staffordshire  
 

• Churnet Valley Railway project  implementation  
including extension to Moneystone Park and Leek 
town centre with linkages to path/cycle trails. 
 

• Working with SCC, Stoke and  Newcastle to link 
housing development to countryside as quality of 
life offer for urban areas. 
 

©Alton Towers 

16 

P
age 27



Health and Well-being 

Issues: 
• The significant and acknowledged issues within the health economy in North 

Staffordshire. 
• Aging population and changing need for health and social care. 
• Recruitment of skilled health professionals as well as support workers. 
• Proposed closure of hospital sites in Leek and Cheadle (pending consultation) 
• Need to improve provision and accessibility to health and education services 

and facilities. 
• Need to increase physical activity and encourage healthy travel across all age 

groups. 
 
 

Opportunities: 
• The development and the delivery of the NHS Sustainable Transformation Plan  
• Opportunity to consider reshaping service delivery for health sector in Leek 

and Cheadle 
• Opportunity to bring health development within the town centre in  a more 

accessible and sustainable location. 
• Opportunity for health development to lead and drive town centre 

regeneration. 
• Opportunity to redevelop the health centres sites for appropriate use. 

Local Plan Context 2018:2031 

 
The vision for the Draft Local Plan states that the 
needs of all sectors of the community, in particular 
younger and older people, will be better met 
through the provision of recreational, sport and 
community facilities, local employment 
opportunities and appropriate housing. 
Encouragement of physical activity and active 
travel throughout the District and across all age 
groups will improve health and well-being. 
 
Health Profile 2017 (Public Health England) 
 
Rates of violent crime, long term unemployment, 
early deaths from cardiovascular diseases and early 
deaths from cancer are better than national 
average. Priorities for Staffordshire Moorlands 
include childhood obesity, smoking in pregnancy, 
drug misuse and aging well. 
Key facts: 
• 13% children live in low income families 
• In year 6, 19.4% of children are classified as 

obese. 
• Levels of smoking at the time of delivery are 

worse than England average. 
• The rate of self-harm hospital stays is worse 

than the average for England. 
• The rate of excess winter deaths is worse than 

national average. 
• Life expectancy for men is higher than the 

England average. 

17 

P
age 28



Health and well-being 
 

Proposed Actions: 
 

• Support the delivery of the Strategic 
Transformation Plan (STP) with an initial 
focus on Leek and Cheadle to develop health 
and other services that are fit for the future. 
 

• Consider health offer as an integral part of 
any town centre masterplans to be prepared. 
 

• Work in partnership with NHS trust and SCC 
to access OPE support and funding. 
 

• Prepare business cases and relevant funding 
bids to bring the developments for both new 
and unrequired sites as appropriate. 
 

• Work with private sector developers and land 
owners to deliver school sites identified and 
allocated in the Draft Local Plan. 
 

• Work with others including the local 
education sector and employers  to address 
the skill gaps identified. 
 
 Leek College campus 

18 

P
age 29



Connectivity 
Issues: 
• Safety issues for heavy vehicles on A50 near Blythe Bridge. 
• Lack of access to key strategic sites such as Blythe Vale (south of A50) and other 

master planned areas for residential and employment sites. 
• Traffic issues in Cheadle. (and also poor links to/from Cheadle to A50) 
• Pedestrian and cycle connectivity between towns, Churnet Valley and Stoke urban 

area. 
• Lack of consistency and quality in digital connectivity throughout the district – 

need for increased funding & intervention rates or innovation solutions to address 
areas in final 4% ( areas with no planned broadband coverage)  

• Lack of rail connectivity. 
 
 

Opportunities: 
• The development of north/south HS2 routes and the opportunity to enhance the  

east –west link through Blythe Bridge station. 
• Further development of the A50 as a major growth route enabling the movement 

of skilled labour force. 
• Potential to develop the Leek to Moneystone heritage rail link- Enhance the visitor 

economy through the further development of the Churnet Valley Heritage Line. 
• Existing network of trails, paths and walking routes that can be joined up and 

promoted as a coherent package. 
• Consideration of potential light rail network to link Biddulph/Knypersley to 

Hanley/Stoke 
• Digital connectivity needs to be explored to overcome some of the constraints of 

physical infrastructure provision and tackle social and economic inclusion. 
• Opportunities to embed high speed broadhand in new developments via emerging 

Local Plan Policy which states that: all development shall be served by high speed 
broadband (>30mbps) unless it can be demonstrated through consultation with 
Next Generation Access Network providers that this would not be possible, 
practical or economically viable. In all circumstances during construction of the site 
sufficient and suitable ducting should be provided within the site and to the 
property to facilitate ease of installation at a future date. 

Local Plan Context 2018:2031 

 
The Spatial Strategy of the Local Plan supports 
connectivity at the outset by focussing growth in the 
most sustainable locations. However, the plan seeks 
to further enhance connectivity  with support for 
measures identified in the County Council’s 
Integrated Transport Strategy,  sustainable transport 
measures such as improvements to Green 
Infrastructure and more strategic infrastructure such 
as consideration of the A50 and links to Stoke.  
 
The A50 is an important strategic corridor 
supporting global advanced manufacturing 
businesses such as Bentley, JCB, Toyota, Rolls Royce 
and Bombardier. It is identified as a key corridor as 
part of the Midlands’ Connect programme. A50 is 
the key east-west link between two major transport 
corridors of M1 and M6. As per of the planned HS2 
route, A50 connects the eastern and western arm of 
HS2 by linking Stoke in the West and Derby in the 
East.  The roundabout at Blythe Bridge is the last 
remaining roundabout on the A50 that requires 
remodelling.  
 
Blythe Bridge railway station is the only station in 
Staffordshire Moorlands and from which passenger 
numbers are increasing despite the poor and 
infrequent service. Blythe Bridge railway station is 
right in the middle of the eastern and western arm 
of HS2 with currently 40 mins travel to both Crewe 
and to Derby. 

19 

P
age 30



Connectivity 
 

Proposed Actions: 
 

• Develop and deliver projects from Cheadle transport 
package by working with public and private sector 
partners. 
 

• Work to support developments which require 
infrastructure improvements to unlock delivery 
including access to funding where viability gaps exist. 
 

• Work in partnership with Highways England and SCC 
to deliver  infrastructure to unlock Blythe Vale site. 
 

• Develop a joint masterplan for Blyther Vale site to 
include enhancement and long term vision for the 
east-west route and specifically Blythe Bridge station 
and seeking support for this through the 
Constellation Partnership and Midlands Engine. 
 

• Support as required to the Churnet Valley Railway as 
they seek to connect additional lengths of the 
heritage tourist line.  
 

• Work with public, private and voluntary sector to 
enhance sustainable transport network of pedestrian 
and cycle paths, canal towpaths and other green 
infrastructure corridors with a view to connect key 
visitor destinations as well as residential and 
employment areas. 
 

• Work with Superfast Staffordshire and commercial 
sector to ensure s106 requirements for digital 
infrastructure all new build business & housing 
allocation developments  
 

• Consider business case for travel subsidy for 
vocational skills/apprenticeships 16-24 year group 
(including wheels to work initiatives) or  sustainable 
transport network to key business clusters. 

20 

P
age 31



Delivery Mechanism 
 

21 

P
age 32



Our Priorities 
The District Council and County Council will work to delivering the actions identified in 
this document; indicative lead partner as below: 
 
Overall:  
• Review all council owned/ public sector owned assets and consider development 

opportunities where appropriate.    SCC 
• Prepare an Investment and Acquisitions Strategy for the District. SMDC 
 
Housing Delivery: 
• Deliver the Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme as approved by the SMDC 

Cabinet in April 2018.                                                SMDC 
 
Business Employment Growth and Skills 
• Deliver the Accelerating Business Growth programme as approved by the SMDC 

Cabinet in September 2016.    Joint 
 
Visitor Economy and Town Centres: 
• Prepare masterplan for Cheadle Town Centre and Leek Mill Quarter SCC 
• Support the development of bed spaces across the District  SCC 
• Undertake an economic impact assessment to understand the impact of this sector 

on the wider economy and identify area of intervention by public sector. Joint 
 
Connectivity:  
• Develop and deliver projects from Cheadle transport package by working with public 

and private sector partners.    SCC 
• Work with CVR  to reinstate Railway including extension to Moneystone Park and 

Leek town centre with linkages to path/cycle trails.                          SMDC 
• Work in partnership with Highways England and SCC to deliver access infrastructure 

to bring forward Blythe Vale site.   SCC 
 
Health and Well-being:  
• Support the delivery of the Strategic Transformation Plan (STP) for Leek and Cheadle 

to develop health and other services that are fit for the future. SCC 

23 

P
age 33



Key areas of intervention: 
• Housing Delivery 
• Business,  Employment and Skills Growth 
• Visitor Economy & Town Centre Regeneration 
• Health 
• Connectivity 
 

Interdependencies: 
• Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan and Corporate Plan 
• SCC Strategic Plan 
• Stoke & Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership’s Strategic Economic Plan  
• Constellation Partnership Growth Strategy 
• Midlands Engine Strategy 
• Enjoy Staffordshire Tourism strategy, SMDC visitor economy strategy 
• Health & Wellbeing Board  Strategy 
• Playing pitch and built facilities strategy, SMDC 
• Green Infrastructure Strategy 
 

Funding opportunities 
To ensure that the growth strategy is delivered external funding opportunities will be explored as including developer 
contributions and national options. 
  

Partners 
The initial growth strategy will be between SCC and SMDC but other partners including Your Housing, Leek and Buxton College 
will be invited to be part of emerging approach. 
  

Governance structure 
It is proposed that a formal Governance arrangement is required with both SCC and SMDC reporting progress through their 
existing arrangements.   
A joint oversight Board will include the Leaders of both SCC and SMDC and their Chief Executives and  officer support who will 
monitor delivery of the Growth Strategy and take action as required. 

23 

P
age 34



Key stakeholders include : 

 
• Staffordshire County Council 
• Stoke on Trent and Staffordshire LEP 
• Constellation Partnership 
• Peak District National Park Authority  
• Town and Parish councils 
• Staffordshire Chambers of Commerce 
• Enjoy Staffordshire 
• Totally Locally  
• Local Business community 
• Stoke & Staffordshire Growth Hub 
• Make It Stoke and Staffordshire 
• HCA, RPs, house builders 
• Site owners  and developers 
• Support Staffordshire 
• Churnet Valley Living Landscapes Partnership 
• Churnet Valley Railway PLC 
• Buxton & Leek College (University of Derby) 
• Business Peak District 
• Civic society, other active community organisations 
• Historic England 
• Environment Agency 

 

Key stakeholders: 
 

24 25 

P
age 35



25 

P
age 36



Dai Larner 
Executive Director of Place 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
dai.larner@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

Darryl Eyers 
Director of Regeneration 
Staffordshire County Council 
darryl.eyers@staffordshire.gov.uk 

27 

P
age 37

mailto:Dai.larner@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
mailto:Dai.larner@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
mailto:darryl.eyers@staffordshire.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Staffordshire Moorlands Growth Strategy
Consultation Responses 

Suggestion Action Taken

Provide more information about role of LEP Agree and updated 

Requested more statistical information on 
economy and query of statistics

All statistical information is accurate and up to date. The council also produces a bi-annual  
'Economic and business profile of the district' which forms part of the suite of documents which 
sit underneath this growth strategy, and this provides a more in-depth breakdown for those 
wanting this information. 

Suggested inclusions of Biddulph Neighbourhood 
Plan proposals; and Neighbourhood development 
orders and Ascent 2 as delivery mechanisms for 
housing delivery.

Town centre opportunities now identifies opportunity to work with stakeholders to implement 
any adopted plan/order. In terms of housing delivery, the growth plan already includes wording 
to 'consider all options to support housing delivery. 

Questioned how SMDC would have capacity to 
deliver redevelopment of public sector estate  for 
housing delivery

Growth Strategy is a joint strategy from both SMDC and SCC with input from key stakeholders. 
The strategy is therefore broader than just a delivery plan for the district council but a strategy 
which all partners are working to deliver.

Request additional identification of key 
businesses, locations incl. Leek Auctions, Biddulph 
Grange, Churnet Valley Railway as well as wider 
countryside as asset for tourism(not just National 
Park/Churnet valley).

Agree and updated in appropriate sections in Business, visitor economy and town centres as 
appropriate

Suggested public sector delivery of start-up and 
grow on space for business, providing new 
serviced land for business growth and 
refurbment/remediation of empty 
mills/brownfield land. 

Both district and county council already works to faciliate or lead directly on a range of 
appropriate schemes and works closely with private sector owners where there are barriers or 
viability gaps. The growth strategy is supportive of all options to bring forward new business 
accommodation by a range of delivery mechanisms, including potential direct delivery where 
appropriate.

P
age 39



Health/wellbeing - remove potential closure of 
hospitals in Cheadle/Leek subject as an issue as no 
decision taken

While no decision has been taken at this point, the potential closure of these sites is already in 
the public domain and is subject to consultation. It would therefore be remiss not to identify this 
as an issue both in terms of how residents will have access to services and what to do with any 
site that maybe closed in the longer term. This does not mean that any view is expressed with 
regard to their future. 

Suggested inclusion of road improvements to 
A527, A53-A520 etc.

Growth Strategy is not aiming to replace detailed transport & road infrastructure proposals or 
identify infrastructure upgrading of existing network. Instead, the focus is on supporting 
infrastructure where it will unlock growth and development - in some instances, these may be 
synonymous.  

Small number of administrative suggestions, re-
phrasing or inclusion of stakeholder names. 

Agree and updated

P
age 40



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to the Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel

21st November 2018

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – AES – Summary of Governance Structure
Appendix B – Outline of services to be transferred to AES in Phase 3

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Panel to consider the service specification 
for the services to be transferred to Alliance Environmental Service (AES) in 
the third phase, ensuring that future service delivery meets the requirements 
of the Council.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Panel:

 Support the development of the new operating arrangements; and 
 Consider and comment on the service specifications to be transferred in 

phase 3 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 In June 2017 Cabinet approved a report approving the establishment of the 
joint venture company for the delivery of Waste Collection, Street Cleansing, 
Grounds Maintenance & Fleet Management Services. This confirmed the 

TITLE: Alliance Environmental Services (AES) – Phase 
3 – Transfer of Services – Street Cleansing & 
Grounds Maintenance

PORTFOLIO HOLDERS: Cllr Arthur Forrester – Portfolio Holder for the 
Environment
Cllr Mike Bowen – Portfolio Holder for Leisure, 
Sports, Parks, Countryside & Communities

CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Executive Director 
(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



governance arrangements to allow Alliance Environmental Services (AES) to 
be fully established (these are summarised in Appendix A).

3.2 The first phase of transfer of services which took place in July 2017 was 
focussed on the High Peak waste collection services following the end of their 
contract with a private provider. In April 2018 Cabinet approved the transfer of 
services further to be included in phase 2. The second phase included the 
following service functions:

Staffordshire Moorlands
 Waste collection (including communications & promotion)
 Fleet management

High Peak
 Waste communications & promotion
 Fleet management  

3.3 in October 2018 Cabinet approved a report that set out the proposed transfer 
of services to be included in phase 3. The third phase includes the following 
service functions:

High Peak & Staffordshire Moorlands
 Street cleansing
 Grounds maintenance 

3.4 AS with the second phase, Cabinet approved the principle of the transfer of 
these functions and requested the Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel to scrutinise the detailed operational arrangements prior to final 
approval by the Cabinet in December. The Resources Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel has been requested to scrutinise the financial arrangements.

3.5 This report requests that the Panel consider the service specification and 
delivery arrangements for the services to be transferred in the third phase. An 
outline of the services included is set out in Appendix B and will be covered in 
more detail in a presentation at the meeting.  

4. How this report links with Corporate Priorities

4.1 One of the four aims of the Council’s Corporate Plan is “to protect and 
improve the environment”. The successful delivery of this aim will be 
underpinned by the development of the new operating arrangements as 
outlined in this report.

5. Evaluation of Options

5.1 There are no options to consider

Page 42



6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
No direct implications

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
The financial savings plan for AES provides for £1.2 million of on-going 
revenue savings. 

6.5 Legal
The specifications will be developed into detailed schedules that will form 
part of the Service Operating Agreement that sets out the services provided 
by AES to the Council  
 

16.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 External Consultation
Not applicable

6.8  Risk Assessment
Not applicable

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact details

Nicola Kemp – Operational Manager 
(Contract Management)
Tel: 01538 395400 EXT. 4426  
Email: 
nicola.kemp@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6.4

Page 43

mailto:nicola.kemp@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


APPENDIX A

Summary of Governance Arrangements

Page 44



APPENDIX B

Outline of services to be transferred to AES in Phase 3

Street Cleansing Services:
 Litter picking including the removal of drug related litter
 Litter bin installation, replacement and scheduled emptying 
 Emptying of Parish and Town council bins where agreement is in place
 Scheduled highway mechanical street sweeping incl. Council car parks, 

parks, depots, leisure centres and cemeteries
 Removal of fly tipping from the highway, private land (upon request) or council 

land
 Removal of dog fouling in streets, parks and public places
 Removal of dead animals (road kill) from the highway
 Removal of graffiti and fly posting -  from public and private land  where 

applicable
 Installation of new and replacement of damaged street nameplates
 Gritting of council land i.e. car parks, leisure centre car parks and some 

highway areas (HPBC provide on behalf of DCC)
 Enforcement activities – Stencilling, sign erection, gathering evidence, issuing 

FPN’S, court appearances
 Supporting other departments with office moves, large equipment relocation, 

house waste clearances
 Weed spraying on Council  land 
 Highway weed spraying (HPBC provide service on behalf of DCC)
 Bus shelter cleaning
 Gully emptying in depots
 Supporting community litter picks with equipment and staffing resource
 Supporting major tourist events, litter clearance and temporary infrastructure 

i.e. bins
 Gully emptying (HPBC provide contracted service on behalf of DCC)
 Collation of KPI data such as 195 Inspections and Hotspot data
 Closing of height restriction barriers on some car parks
 Undertaking private sweeping for local businesses

Horticulture:
 Maintenance of closed church yards, memorial safety testing
 Maintenance of cemeteries,  grave digging, memorial safety inspections (plus 

records)
 Grounds maintenance services including; mowing, planting, litter picking of 

parks, playing fields and other open spaces
 Playground inspections, maintenance and repairs
 Allotments – management, maintenance, rents, lists 
 Friends group coordination
 Ad hoc restoration, community projects
 Flail mowing (HP provide management of contract on behalf of DCC)
 In Bloom, Keep Britain Tidy & Tidy Village support
 Green Flag applications, assessments

Page 45



Depots:
 Cleansing of depot grounds i.e. sweeping, litter collection
 COTC – waste storage and transfer where applicable

Support functions:
 Lengthsman scheme (SM)
 Out of hours emergency response & standby cover
 Mutual aid arrangements with County council and emergency service 

providers 

Page 46



Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Work Programme 2018/19

Date Item Contact Officer
23 May 2018

Consultation on the National Planning Policy Framework D Larner
Alliance Environmental Services – Phase 2 A Stokes
Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme D Larner
Growth Strategy D Larner

18 July 2018
Markets Update T Crawford
Street Cleansing K Parker

26th September
Progress Report on the Councils Strategy for Physical Activity and Sport D Stock
Update on the Countryside and Parks Management Review  K Parker/N Kemp

21 November 2018
AES Phase 3 A Stokes
Growth Strategy - Consultation Responses. S Porru
Leisure Facility Contract A Stokes
Leek Rail Project Update S Porru

30 January 2019

20 March 2019
TBC

Progress Report on the Councils Strategy for Physical Activity and Sport 
(Annual Update)

D Stock

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 91

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	7 Growth Strategy - Consultation Responses. (7.10pm)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2 for Growth Strategy - Consultation Responses

	8 Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 3 - Transfer of Services - Street Cleansing & Grounds Maintenance. (7.30pm)
	9 Work Programme. (7.50pm)
	11 Leisure Centres - Contract Arrangements (8pm)
	12 Leek Rail Project Update. (8.20pm)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


